

V25.0 Supplement

Copyright © 1998-2021 WestDev Ltd. All rights Reserved. E & O E

Number One Systems 20 Miller Court Severn Drive Tewkesbury Business Park Tewkesbury Glos GL20 8DN United Kingdom

Phone: 01684 296 501 Email: <u>sales@numberone.com</u>

Technical: 01480 382 538 Email: support@numberone.com

Web site: www.numberone.com

The product is licensed by WestDev Ltd to the original purchaser of the product for use only on the terms set forth in the WestDev End User Licence Agreement. Copying, duplicating, selling or using the product contrary to these terms is strictly forbidden.

This Manual Copyright to WestDev Ltd. All Rights reserved. No part of it may be copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced to any electronic medium or machine-readable form without WestDev Ltd. prior written permission.

Information in this manual is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of the vendor.

Number One Systems, Easy-PC, Easy-Spice, Easy-Router, ProRouter, Pulsar, Layan, Analyser, MultiRouter, Filtech, Z-Match, StockIt and all variants thereof are Trademarks of WestDev Ltd.

All other trademarks acknowledged to their rightful owners.

Number One Systems, a trading division of WestDev Ltd.

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this manual WestDev Ltd cannot be held responsible for any errors or omissions within it. If informed we will add comments and features which you may like to see written which may help others using this manual. Please send your comments through the technical support desk.

Manual date: 31/07/21 Issue 1

Contents

CONTENTS	. 3
CHAPTER 1. GETTING STARTED	. 4
Installation	. 4
Running Easy-PC 25.0	. 5
CHAPTER 2. NEW FEATURES IN EASY-PC V25	. 6
Differential Pair Track Editing	. 6
Overview	
What is a Differential Pair?	. 6
Setting up Diff Pairs	. 6
Creating Diff Pairs	. 8
Diff Pairs – Design Tooltips	
Diff Pairs – Nets Bar	
Highlight Colour of Diff Pairs	12
Design Rules Checking of Diff Pairs	12
Diff Pair Report	13
New Design Rule Checks	14
DRC check for Undrilled Pads	
DRC check for Via to SMD Pad distance	
DRC Track Spacings for Teardrops	15
Highlight Net across Project	
Resize Shape	
Delete in SCM, option to keep Net	
Component Values – Rename option	
Add Component Bar shows Values	
Add Component – List of Recent items	
Copper Coverage Report	
Free Pads in Custom Report	
Angle of PCB Item in a Panel Design	
Shape To Pad	
Component Suppression dialog	
Place Component Names in PCB	
Component Description on dialogs	
Tented Vias	
Export Pin Information from Component Editor dialog	31

Chapter 1. Getting Started

Installation

Backing up your files

If you already have Easy-PC installed, please remember to back up all your libraries, Technology files and any other data files before proceeding with the installation of the new version. The installer should not overwrite any of your own named files, but it can re-install new copies of our standard data files so if you have changed any of those files it is important to back them up first. If you are uncertain, check the time/date stamp on the file but in any case, make a back-up.

Of course, backing up your data is important not only for the upgrade but also at regular intervals during design.

Installation from a download link

A download link for the installation of Easy-PC would have been provided to you by email. Click on the link to download the executable named EasyPC.exe. This is the whole installation set and should be saved and backed up for future use. Any subsequent patches can be installed on top of this 'base' setup once installed.

Using Windows Explorer, find the executable in your *Downloads* folder and double-click it. You'll need to type (or copy/paste) the **password** provided to unpack this file. Once the unpack password has been successful, you will be allowed to continue with the installation. You will also need to have your **customer ID number** that will be in the download link and your **16-digit installation** code to fully install the product.

All other instructions should be followed until you click Finish to complete the installation.

The installation is the same for new and existing users alike. Existing users with versions prior to this latest version can install the new software over an existing installation without deleting the old one first.

Installation From CD

Note: CDs are no longer supplied by default, a download link would have been supplied to you to use unless you have purchased the CD media.

To use the CD-ROM - insert the CD-ROM and wait a short time. The CD-ROM will run up to speed and an Easy-PC Welcome screen will appear. If *autorun* has been disabled on your computer you must execute the 'setup.exe' program using the **Start** menu and **Run** command from the Windows task bar.

Installing over existing Easy-PC software

If you already have an earlier version of Easy-PC installed on your system and you wish to install the new version into the same folder as the earlier one, please note that you will then end up with both versions listed in the Windows Control Panel list of installed applications.

If you don't want the earlier one to be listed in the **Control Panel**, you will need to un-install that version <u>before</u> you install the new one. If you install the new software into the same folder as the old version then try to un-install the old one, you will find that the new software will not run as the un-install will have removed many or all of the program files.

If you wish to install and use the new version without removing the old one, you will need to install the new version into a different folder. The two versions will then operate independently and either can be un-installed without preventing the other from running.

Uninstalling Existing Easy-PC Software

Uninstalling will still remove shared registry entries, so it is recommended that a configuration file be saved first using the **Configuration Files** option from the **Help** menu and **Support** option. This will provide a restore point for any settings which may be lost.

Data Files Location

There is a step in the **Setup** installation wizard that asks you where you want to place data files (for example, Libraries, Technology files, etc). The default is always to use the common documents folder, C:\Users\Public\Documents\Easy-PC on Windows 8.1 or 10 if you are installing for All Users, or into your own Documents folder if installing for current user only.

Running Easy-PC 25.0

Once installed, an Easy-PC shortcut icon will appear on your desktop. This is also available on the **Start** panel in the **Number One Systems** folder.

To start the program, double-click on the Easy-PC icon.



Chapter 2. New Features in Easy-PC V25

Differential Pair Track Editing

Overview

You can now use Diff Pair from the Edit menu to add Differential Pairs to your design.

Diff Pairs in Easy-PC are enabled and controlled from the **Design Technology** dialog and **Net Class** tab.

Controls are available for separate Diff Pair Gap and Skew values for pairs on a Net Class.

What is a Differential Pair?

A Differential Pair is a term used in PCB design to define a pair of tracks that carry signals that are transmitted down them. These are usually tightly coupled tracks; one carries a positive signal and the other carries the returning signal, this tight coupling balances the pair.



Setting up Diff Pairs

Diff Pairs in Easy-PC are defined using **Net Class** settings within your **Design Technology** and they must be enabled for use by selecting the **Differential Pairs** check box.

If **Differential Pairs** are enabled on a **Net Class**, Easy-PC will automatically detect pairs of nets using this Net Class and then based on their **Net Names**. It searches for pairs of nets with the suffix _P and _N and automatically designates those as a pair, for example, DQS_P and DQS_N

	Net Class	\times
$\Box \rangle$	Name: DQS Type: Signal Qwn Colour:	
	Minimum Track Style	
	Name: Track 10 Via 40 Via 40	-
	Width: 0.2540 Size: 1.0160	
	Nominal Track Style Shape: Round Name: Track 12 Length: 0.0000 Width: 0.3048 Hole Size: 0.8128	~
	Maximum Track Length Difference Min and Max Track Lengths	
	Length: 0.0000 Min: 0.0000 Max: 0.0000	
	Gap: 0.2000 Skew Length: 1.5000 None	-
. –	OK Cancel	

Once enabled, controls are available for separate **Diff Pair Gap** and **Skew Lengths** for pairs on the Net Class.

A gap different to the main Track to Track Spacing rule may be required for specific Diff Pairs.

The **Skew** value between each pair can be set, this effectively enables you to set a maximum delay distance. This can be as log or as short as required depending on your timing requirements.



A Net Class has several settings relating to Diff Pairs:

Differential Pairs: check this box to enable and disable Diff Pairs on this Net Class.

Diff Pair **Gap**: this is the gap between the edges of the tracks of a pair. This overrides the normal Track to Track Spacing rule.

Diff Pair **Skew Length**: the check box enables or disables this extra parameter and once enabled, provides you with a value for the calculation of skew between tracks of a routed pair.

The **Design Technology** dialog displays the **Diff Pair Gap**, whether **Diff Pair Skew** is enabled and the **Max Skew**.

Pad	Styles Text St	yles Line	Styles Hatch S	tyles	Track S	ityles Layers	Layer	Types	Layer Spans	Nets	Net	Classes Va	lue Names
	LenDiff Enabled	Length Diff	MinMax Enabled	Min	Max	Own Colour	Colour	Tented	Diff Pairs	Diff I	air Gap	Diff Pair Skew	Max Skew
Х	Yes	0.3000	No	0.0000	0.0000	No		None	Yes		0.2000	Yes	1.5000
Х	No	0.0000	No	0.0000	0.0000	No		None	No		1.0000	No	0.0000
х	No	0.0000	No	0.0000	0.0000	No		None	No		0.2000	Yes	1.5000

Other length rules for a Net Class can also be utilised within a Diff Pair, such as **Min/Max Track** Lengths.

Creating Diff Pairs

When a Diff Pair is added to the design, it will be the actual centre of the two lines that is on grid, not the Diff Pairs themselves. This means you should try and use grid multiples when routing so that odd segments are avoided.

To start a Diff Pair, you can choose a number of options:

- Pick one of the Diff Pair connections and choose **Diff Pair** from the context menu:



- Pick one of the pads of the Diff Pair connections and choose Diff Pair from the context menu.
- Pick either the connection or Pad of the Diff Pair connections and select **Diff Pairs** from the **Edit** menu.

Once the **Diff Pair** option is selected you will see two 'dots', these present the start of the Diff Pair, a modal cursor indicated you are in 'pairing' mode.



From here, you can 'draw' in your pair. This operates the same as when adding tracks with most tracking modes available; **Change Layer**, **Segment Modes**, **Display Clearances** etc. These are available on the context menu.

When you see the start points, you can also immediately right click to view the context menu. This contains the **Route Connection At Start Point** mode.



When this is selected, the start of the Diff Pair will be taken from the pads and will automatically route out (where it can) to the Diff Pair tracks.

Draw the tracking in as required:



During routing, this uses the **Diff Pair Gap** (on the Net Class, if defined) or if not defined, it uses the **Track to Track spacing** for the current Net Class and Layers (this way you can have different gaps on different layers).

During editing, you can use **Change Layer** using the context menu option or <L> key. Two vias are inserted along with suitably spaced tracking. When using **Change layer**, if not **All Segments** then it inserts a 45-degree via pattern where vias are separated using the **Via to Via Spacing**.



Diff Pairs - Double Click mode

While editing a Diff Pair, it uses the **Edit Track** options in **Preferences** to decide what to do when **double-click** is used to finish, i.e. **Finish Here** or **Auto Complete**.

Use the Show Legal Completion Path option to identify the path that will be taken on completion.

Using Auto Complete will enable the pairing to finish on the target pads for you:



Diff Pairs – Partial routing

If a diff Pair has been partially completed, within Add Diff Pair mode, you can pick the two junctions at the end of the paired section to start from. Move the gather point back over the junctions to add paired segments to the existing ones and continue Diff Pair routing.

Diff Pairs – Design Tooltips

When selecting a connection that forms part of a Diff Pair, **Design Tooltips** will now show information about the Diff Pair if it detects a match on the Net Class name:



When editing any track that is in a Diff Pair the track limits show the length of the other net and, if defined, the skew and max skew values. The skew is measured as simply the difference in total net lengths.



Diff Pairs - Nets Bar

New columns are available in Nets Bar for Diff Pairs.

Nets												×
Options	. Ci	alumns									<u></u>	<u></u>
Name	Class	Pads	Net Length	Min Length Rule	Max Length Rule	Length Diff Rule	Shortest in Class	Longest in Class	Length Diff	Vias	Diff Pair Skew Rule	Diff Pair Skew
DQS_N	DQS	C16.1 Q2.1 R20.2 U1.6	33.0287			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0	1.5000	3.8599
DQS_P	DQS	C7.2 Q2.2 R22.2	29.1688			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0	1.5000	3.8599
DRIVE	DQS	C12.2 PL2.1 Q5.3 Q6.3	30.4794			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0		
EX_N	DQS	R36.2 R37.2	16.0547			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0	1.5000	2.7940
EX_P	DQS	R36.1 R37.1	13.2607			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0	1.5000	2.7940
Feedback	DQS	PL2.4 R1.1	46.8972			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0		
High_speed	DQS	PL1.4 R40.1	19.6663			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0		
Low_speed	DQS	PL1.3 R39.1	17.0361			0.3000	3.9624	53.7648	49.8024	0		

The Edit Nets Bar Columns dialog includes Diff Pair Skew Rule and Diff Pair Skew.

Current Columns:	Available Columns:
Name Class Pads Net Length Min Length Rule Length Diff Rule Shortest in Class Longest in Class Length Diff Vias Diff Pair Skew Rule Diff Pair Skew	<< Add Test Lands Remove >> Minimum Full Move Up Move Down

For a Diff Pair net, **Diff Pair Skew Rule** shows the rule on a net if its Net Class has a skew rule defined and **Diff Pair Skew** shows the actual difference between the lengths of the two nets forming the Diff Pair.

As with all Length columns in this dialog, the cells change colour to display whether the Skew is within the limits defined.

Highlight Colour of Diff Pairs

There is a highlight colour in the **Display** (Colours) dialog that allows you to see paired connections and tracks (using the centre stripe) for diff Pairs using a highlight colour to make them more visible.



Design Rules Checking of Diff Pairs

The DRC Track Lengths check now checks for Diff Pair skew errors.

Design Rule Check	
 ✓ Spacing ✓ Iracks ✓ Pads + Vias ✓ Shapes ✓ Text ✓ Board ✓ Drills ✓ Components ✓ Nets Net Completion Dangling Tracks ✓ Mith No Comps On No Connect Pins ✓ Single Pin 	Manufacturin Acid Trap Componen Copper St Copper Te Drill Brack Inner Trac Min Annul Min Paste Min Track M

When run, the DRC report shows Skew differences:

🎬 Reports							-	
Report: Design Rule Ch	eck Report (Controller_25.pcb)	~	Settings	Print	Help			
Design Rule Cl	heck Report							
Report Written: Design Path: Design Title: Created: Last Saved: Editing Time: Units:	Monday, July 26, 2021 C:\Users\bob\Documents\Easy-PC\Ex 23/06/2003 17:46:17 26/07/2021 14:31:31 6817 min mm (precision 4)	amples\Controlle	r_25.pcb					
Track length differ	rs from other nets of same dass : Net d rs from other nets of same dass : Net d f Pair skew between "DQS-P" and "DQS found : 3	ass DQS specifies	track lengt	ths must be	<u>+/- 0.1500</u> +/- 0.1500	but net DOS_N length is 13.1458 exper but net DOS_P length is 10.3518 exper	<u>ted to be 11</u> ted to be 11	<u>1.748</u> 1.748
Accepted Erro	rs already in the design							
No errors found								

Diff Pair Report

A new report is available in the **Output** menu and **Reports** called **Differential Pairs Report**.



When run, the report will display values relating to the Diff Pair nets in your design:

🐸 Reports						
Report: Differential Pair	Report (Controller_25_2.pd)		\sim	Settings	Prin
Differential Pai	r Report					
Report Written:	Friday, July 30, 202	1				
Design Path:	C:\Users\Document	s\Easy-PC\E	xamples\Contr	roller_2	25_2.pcb	
Design Title:						
Created:	23/06/2003 17:46:1	17				
Last Saved:	30/07/2021 13:10:0	06				
Editing Time:	9894 min					
Units:	mm (precision 4)					
Net Net Cl	ass Net Length	Skew	Max Skew	Valid	I	
DQS_P DQS	13.4876	-0.0988	1.5000			
DQS_N	13.5864					

New Design Rule Checks

New Design Rules Checks have been added for Undrilled Pads, Via to SMD Pad and a Track Spacing check for Teardrops.

Design Rule Check		
✓ Spacing ✓ Iracks ✓ Pads + Vias ✓ Shapes ✓ Tegt ✓ Board ✓ Drjills	Manufacturing Acid Traps Component Area Component Height Component Names Copper Shape Verification Copper Text Outside Board	Silkscreen Overlap Shapes Board Text Pads Vias Free Pads Text
Components	Drill Brea <u>k</u> out Drill Backo <u>f</u> f	✓ Stub Vias ✓ Test Land Separation
Net Completion	Inner Tracks on Unplated Pads Min Annular Ring Only Where Track Exists	✓ Test Land Size ✓ Test Land Under Component ✓ Test Land Unreachable
Track Lengths With No Comps On No Connect Pins	 Min Drill Hole <u>S</u>ize Min Paste Size ✓ Min Track <u>N</u>eck Length 	Undrilled Through Pads Unplated Vias Unpoured Areas
Single Pin	 Min Tr<u>a</u>ck Width Mirrored Text Routing Argas 	✓ Vias In Pads ✓ Via to SMD Pad ✓ Wires

DRC check for Undrilled Pads

The new **Undrilled Pads** check in the **DRC** dialog looks for through-board pads (on layer [All]) that use a pad style with no drill hole. This avoids the mistakes where pads have not been specified for drilling and the final manufactured PCB has no drills or plating when required. This check is highly recommended on all boards that have any plated-through holes.

DRC check for Via to SMD Pad distance

There is a new check in **DRC** that looks for a minimum distance from a **Via to an SMD Pad** on the same net. This means you can set a value that is acceptable by the manufacturer to ensure that solder bridges don't exist.



To use this option, it has to be enabled and a value defined on the **Rules** tab of the **Design Technology** dialog. This value specifies the distance from the SMD pad edge to the pad edge of the via.

Pad Styles T	ext Styles	Line	Styles	Ha	tch Styles		Track Style	s	Layers
Net Classes	Value Nar	nes	Spacin	gs	Rules		Comp Ru	ules	Cor
Power Planes				Co	mponent H	eig	nt Checks		
<default></default>) ~] Top	М	ax Allowed I	Height:	0.00
					Bottom	М	ax Allowed I	Height:	0.00
Prefer Orthogo	nal Spokes		\sim	Va	alue Name:		Height		
Isolation Gap:		0.2540							
Spoke Width:		0.2540			1	Co	mponent Sp	acing	
				То	p Side:				0.00
Number of Spok	es:	4	÷	Bo	ttom Side:				0.00
Minimum Spoke	s:	2	-	Во	ards				
Pads and Drills				Bo	ard Spacin	g:			0.00
Drill Spacing:		0.0000		Pa	anel to Boar	d:			0.00
Min Annular Ring	g: (0.0762		Te	st Land Ch	eck	s		
Min Paste Size:		0.0508		Mi	nimum Pad	Wi	dth:		2.54
Min Via Annular	Ring:	0.0762		Mi	nimum Sep	arai	tion:		6.35
Min Hole Size:		0.0000		Pr	obe Side:		Bott	tom	
Min Via Hole Siz	e:	0.0000		40	id Trap Che	ock			
Via to SMD Pad	: [0.0000			nimum Allov				90.0
Tracks				Mi	nimum Allov	wed	Gap:		1.27
Minimum Track		0 0508							
				Pa	d Style Exc	ept	ions		
Min Neck/Fatt	en Length:	2.5400			Mirror with	Co	mponent		

DRC Track Spacings for Teardrops

A new check box on **Spacings** page of **Design Technology** dialog instructs Easy-PC to use the spacings defined for tracks when dealing with teardrops. This is used instead of the default setting which is to use the Copper shape spacings.

The pouring will use the Shape to Shape spacing, like this if not checked:

	Pad Styles	Fext Styles	Line Styles	Hate	ch Styles	Track Styles	Layers	Layer
	Spacings		Rules		Co	mp Rules		Comp Co
		Trac	ks Pa	ds	Vias	Shapes	Text	
	Tracks	0.20	32 0.20)32	0.2032	0.1000	0.2032	
	Pads	0.20	32 0.20)32	0.2032	0.5000	0.2032	
ĸ	Vias	0.20	32 0.20)32	0.2032	0.5000	0.2032	
\square	Shapes	0.10	00 0.50	000	0.5000	0.5000	0.2032	
` /	Text	0.20	32 0.20)32	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032	
	Board	0.63	50 0.63	350	0.6350	0.6350	0.6350	

The result will look like this:



If the Use Track spacing for Teardrops check box is selected, it will use the Shape to Track spacing instead:

Pad Styles Te Spacings	-	Styles Hat tules	ch Styles Com	Track Styles p Rules	Layers La Comp
	Tracks	Pads	Vias	Shapes	Text
Tracks	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032	0.1000	0.2032
Pads	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032	0.5000	0.2032
Vias	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032	0.5000	0.2032
Shapes	0.1000	0.5000	0.5000	0.5000	0.2032
Text	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032	0.2032
Board	0.6350	0.6350	0.6350	0.6350	0.6350
_		Stop at first Net	t Match		
Check Agair					
Use Board C	entreline	_			
Use Track s	pacings for Teardro	ps			

In our example, we've made the Shape to Track spacing larger but equally, it could well be smaller.



Highlight Net across Project

The **Net Highlight** command has been enhanced to now work across **all open designs** in a **Project** for user-defined net names.

Resize Shape

The ability has been added to grow or shrink Area, Board, Copper or Doc shapes using the Resize Shape command.

This flexible new option enables you to select a Shape, the board outline for example, copy it, change its Type to a Copper Pour Area and then shrink it by a set value. An exact copy of the board outline will then be made but slightly smaller. This is shown in the example below:



To use this option, select the shape and right click, select **Resize Shape** from the context menu.

Resize Shape	×
Grow shape by: -1.0000	OK
	Cancel

Type in the value required. A negative value using the **minus** – sign will **shrink** the shape. A positive value (with **no minus sign**) will **grow** the shape by the value typed. This will use the current design units as displayed in the bottom right-hand corner of the **Status** bar.

This option can be used in the Schematic design and symbol editors too.

Delete in SCM, option to keep Net

There is a new check box **Remove isolated pads from net** in the **Delete** settings for **SCM Interaction Preferences**. Previously, this was only available in **PCB Interaction**. The default value is checked (to match current behaviour where net names are removed if isolated).

This option is used to (optionally) retain a net name on a pin when deleting the connection to it. The default action is for the net name to be removed.

General	Display	Cross Probe	Dual Screer	n Interaction	Schematics Interaction	PCB In
Gener	al					Move
Gene	ral Segm	ent Mode:	Orthogonal		\sim	\checkmark
Rotat	tion Step:		90.00			
□"S	titch" Cor	nnections				
M Ma	ove Curso	r When Editing	g Segments/S	hapes		
Ed	lit Segme	nt Towards Ne	arest End			
🗹 Di	splay Impl	ied Junctions	on Pads			
🗹 Dr	ag Uncor	nnected Pin St	arts New Con	nection		
Pr Pr	ompt for r	iew Net name				Add
🗹 Hig	ghlight Ne	et being edited	Clear Hi	ghlight after ed	it	
Select	t			Delete		
🗌 Igr	nore Fixed	l Items		Remove Atta	ched Connections On:	\checkmark
🗌 Mi	nimum Pie	ck Tolerance		Comp	Pads	
Or	nly If Com	pletely Framed		✓ Other	Items	Sket
		Right-to-Left S	election	Remove A	Il Component Gates	
✓ Se	lect From	Popup List		Remove Is	solated Pads From Net	- Polar Auto

To demonstrate this, we start with the FREQ1 net between two pins:



With the option **checked**, the net and net names are fully removed.



With the option left **unchecked**, the net names on the pins are retained when the connection is deleted.



Component Values – Rename option

In the **Component Values** dialog, there is a new **Rename** button that allows you to change the name of an existing attribute (value). This is available for both **Library Components** and Components in a **design**.

Component	: Values									– 🗆 ×
										ОК
Filter:										Cancel
Comp:	PCB Symbol:									
Pins:	Ref Name:		Apply Clear							
					🗹 Keep	o open any moo	dified Schematic s	heets	\sim	
Sheet Name	Name	Component	Description	PCB Sy	mbol	С	Value	R	D 🛆	Add
Fsk	C1	С	Non-polarised	CAP		2.2nF				Edit
PSU	C2	С	Capacitor	C0805			100nF			Find
PSU	C3	С	Capacitor	C0805			100nF			Сору
Fsk	PL1	5WP	5 way Pin Hea	5						
Fsk	PL2	5WP	5 way Pin Hea	5						Paste
PSU	REF1	TO	Arrow R		_					Delete
Fsk	R2	R	Resistor	R	Comp	onent Value			×	Show
Fsk	R1	R	Resistor	R	Name	Package				Hide
Fsk	U1	74LS00	4 x 2i/p NAND	14DIL	Name.	Раскаде				Revert
Fsk	U2	LM741	Op Amp	8DIL					Cancel	Colours
					L	_	_	_		Colours
									/	
										Rename
									V	To Same Comp
										Order
										Export to CSV
										Import From CSV

By selecting the **Value** name in the column header, the **Rename** option becomes available. Selecting this provides you with a **Name** dialog from which to type the new name.

	The res	ult is like this:						
Sheet Name	Name	Component	Description	PCB Symbol	С	Value	R	Package
Fsk	C1	С	Non-polarised	CAP	2.2nF			
PSU	C2	С	Capacitor	C0805		100nF		
PSU	C3	С	Capacitor	C0805		100nF		
Fsk	PL1	5WP	5 way Pin Hea	5				
Fsk	PL2	5WP	5 way Pin Hea	5				
PSU	REF1	то	Arrow R					
Fsk	R2	R	Resistor	R			20K	
Fsk	R1	R	Resistor	R			10K	
Fsk	U1	74LS00	4 x 2i/p NAND	14DIL				SM
Fsk	U2	LM741	Op Amp	8DIL				DIL

Note, when used in the design and Values names are renamed, this is not reflected in the component Library.

Add Component Bar shows Values



The **Add Component Bar** now displays values of the selected component in a list below the PCB and SCM preview windows. This is in common with the Add Component and other similar dialogs.

Add Component – List of Recent items

The **Add Component** dialog now has the ability to remember the most recent components you have added to your designs. It will present those as an easily accessible list when you select **[Recent]** from the library list in the Add Component dialog:

Γ



The same list is available in the **Add Component Bar** when you choose **[Recent]** from the top of the library list:

Add Component
[Recent]
AD648 {Opamps}
TC1165 {InfineonTC116x}
IA8X44PLC44IR3 {Innovasic}
MCF5206e {Coldfire}
AT24C32D-SSHM-B {Atmel2}
ADSP-2184N-CA {ADSP}
RF4432Pro {User}

The [Recent] list is also available in the Change Component dialog accessed from Component Properties.

Each component you add or use from any of these locations will be automatically added to the top of this list, so you will always see your most recently added or used components right at the top.

The operation of this feature is controlled by settings on the **Interaction** tab of the **Preferences** dialog.

Ge	neral	Display	Cross Probe	Dual Screen	Interaction	Schematics Interaction	PCB Inte
	Gener	al Interac	tion				Goto E
	🗹 🗛	dd Compo	nent keeps Lit	orary style sizes			∠ Do
	🗹 Ac	dd Compo	nent remembe	rs Recent items			G
	\sim	Add Con	nponent dialog	defaults to sho	wing Recent	items	AL
	М	aximum ni	umber of recen	nt items to reme	mber: 30		Dura
ľ	∠ Es	sc in Add	Component ret	turns to dialog			Drag
		on't ask a	bout moving Fi	ixed items (neve	er move them)	MC
	🗹 AI	low Nudg	e of selected it	tems			
	🖂 Se	elect actio	ins recorded in	Undo history			lain O
		ancel in A	dd returns to S	elect Mode			Join O
	~						Join T
	Сору						
	_		o Clipboard	Reversing text applications de		eded for some heir interpretation of	
	🗹 Bit	tmap to C	lipboard	metafiles.			
	<u>~</u> М	etafile to (Clipboard	Reverse R	otation (Clipbo	oard)	
	M	etafile to I	Disk (.emf)	Reverse R	otation (File)		

These allow you to enable/disable the whole 'recent items' feature, control how many items are to be remembered (the default is 30) and to specify whether to always display the [Recent] list when you open the Add Component dialog.

You may find it useful to use the Add Component dialog and bar together like this: in **Preferences**, **Interaction**, uncheck the box for showing recent items on entering the **Add Component** dialog. This allows you to use the dialog as before, browsing different libraries or using **Find** to locate items. On the **Add Component Bar**, set the library name to [Recent] to see your recently added items.

Now your recent items are available to drag into your design from the **Add Component Bar**, but if you want to add a component that you haven't recently accessed then open the Add Component dialog to find it. When you add that to your design it will automatically appear at the top of the Recent list in the dockable bar so it is readily accessible next time you want it.

Copper Coverage Report

A new report on the **Reports** dialog, **Copper Coverage**, lists the total area of filled/hatched copper shapes by layer, including the percentage of the board area covered by this copper.

When producing multi-layer PCBs, it is highly recommended to 'balance' the percentage of copper on each layer so that the board doesn't bend and warp during manufacture. When using copper areas, it is preferable to use hatched copper too. The report also shows hatched copper coverage.

💴 Reports					-		>
eport: Copper Covera	ge (chipKIT Max32.pcb)		\sim	Settings	Print	Н	elp
Copper Cover	age						
Report Written:	Friday, June 18, 2021	L					
Design Path: Design Title:	D:\Test\EasyPC\V25\	chipKIT Max32.pcb					
File Name:	chipKIT Max32.pcb						
Created:	15/08/2011 16:07:55	5					
Last Saved:	18/06/2021 16:35:00	5					
Editing Time:	615 min						
Units:	mm (precision 2)						
Board Area							
5419.34							
Copper Coverage	2						
Name	Filled Copper Area	Hatched Copper Area	Cov	/erage			
Top Copper	248.85	0.00		4			
Layer 2	4803.78	0.00		88			
Layer 3	4739.14	0.00		87			
Bottom Copper	322.74	0.00		5			
		rea of copper shapes or p portion of board is covered					

mm squared.

Note: it should be noted that as stated in the report, the coverage values are approximate as a best calculation. Power plane layers are assumed to be full coverage.

Further information can be found about calculating copper coverage and balancing at this web address: <u>https://www.multi-circuit-boards.eu/en/pcb-design-aid/copper-balance.html</u> Acknowledgement and copyright to Multi Circuit Boards.

Free Pads in Custom Report

Text "Component Positions Report" Standard Report Header Text "" Component List	Add Text Add List	OK Save As
Add List Type	×ader	Cancel
Components Component Pads Vias Free Pads	OK Cancel re Up own Variant	Test

For User Reports, you can now produce a report showing the properties of Free Pads:

This is available when you use the Add List option.

When run, the report can be used to produce a list of free pads that may have been marked as use for Testlands or fiducial markers and suchlike.

Report: Free Pad Positions CSV (chipKIT Max32.pcb)									
Position X	Position Y	Testland							
56.04	101.60	N							
56.04	53.34	N							
140.97	101.60	N							
147.32	53.34	N							
24.50	115.05	N							
27.20	115.05	N							
30.27	115.05	N							
29.75	112.72	N							
29.75	109.65	N							

Angle of PCB Item in a Panel Design

ſ

In a **Panel** design, in **Properties** for a **Panel PCB Design** item, you can now set the **Rotation** to be any angle you want, you are no longer restricted to multiples of 90 degrees.

	Properties - Panel Pcb Item	×
	Panel Pcb Design Item	
	Name: PCB2	<u> </u>
N	Position: 9425.0000 24325.0000 Rel	
>	<u>Angle:</u> 33.0	
/	PCB Design Name: interface.pcb	Change
	Description:	

Shape To Pad

The new context menu command **Shape to Pad** in **Select** mode is available when there is at least one **single line shape** or **unattached track** selected.

Choose Pad Layer	
[Top]	~ OK
	Cancel

This command will ask you to choose the layer for the pads (based on the layer of the first valid selected line), then it will take each line and replace it with an oval pad of the same dimensions on the chosen layer.

For each pad created, a new **Pad Style** will be added to the **Design Technology** using the dimension of the shape selected.

	N		Х	25	[AII]	Round	3.1750	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	1.2700	Yes	0.0000
		l	Х	Oval 0.6350x2.7250	[AII]	Oval	0.6350	2.7250	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	No	0.0000
ľ	/			Round 40	[AII]	Round	1.0160	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.8128	Yes	0.0000
				n 1.co	F & 111	n 1	1 5340	0.0000	0.0000	0.0000	0.0100	14	0.0000

This function is intended for use after importing Gerber files and the need to convert short track segments into pads. These would be isolated segments that would have originally been pads in the host system before being written to Gerber. During import, this cannot be done automatically and is ideally suited to a manual 'by eye' observation, this new option will aid this.

Component Suppression dialog

A new command is available on the **Settings** menu and **Component Suppression** option called **components**. On selection, this displays a dialog with a table of components and their current suppression settings to make it easy to manage them all in one location. In previous releases, you are restricted to doing them through the **Component Properties** dialog.



Suppress (Components									×
Name	Component	Parts Lists	Scm/Pcb	IDF	Comp DRC	All Plots	Plot Shapes	Plot Text	^	ОК
C1	с	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		Cancel
C2	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		
C3	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	Yes		Yes
C4	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		No
C5	c	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		110
C6	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		Load
C7	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		
C8	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		<u>S</u> ave
C9	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		
C10	С	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		
C11	с	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		
C12	C	No	No	No	No	No	No	No		

The **Yes** and **No** buttons toggle the status of a selected cell. The cell can be toggled by double clicking it also.

The **Load** and **Save** buttons on this dialog do the same as the existing Load/Save Suppression File commands that were available in previous version. This allows you to save settings to a text file, manipulate them, and read them back in.

Place Component Names in PCB

There is a new command on the **Tools** menu, **Auto Place Components** option, called **Place Component Names**. This will run spin through all the components in the design (or only the selected ones) and will rationalise the orientation and position of all the value positions.



The means you can place all of your component names in a PCB for example, based on the dialog settings. If you have rotated components, the component name will also be rotated. This dialog enables them all to be repositioned and rotated automatically.

A dialog is presented allowing you to select any of 12 possible positions for the names around the component, and which types of items to avoid when attempting to place them. The component position is the one used on the component in the design and not the symbol origin.

Place Co	mpon	ent Nam	es		×
Allowed	l Positi	ons			Items To Avoid
				Тор	Component Pads
				Bottom	Free Pads
				Left	Vias
				Right	🗹 Text & Values
				All	Shapes
				None	
					OK Cancel

In the example below, the component position setting has been set to the top right corner (the Allowed Position), below is the starting design with a good mix of component names with various rotations and pad violations:



The image below shows the affect after running this tool:



Component Description on dialogs

On dialogs where components are added or replaced, the **Description** from the component is now displayed along with the existing information (package etc.).

This change applies to Add Component, Change Component (from Properties) and Replace Component.

	Add Co	mponent			×
	Library:	[Recent] ~]		
	<u>C</u> omponent:	4007 (4000) 7806 (Hybrid) 74HCT14 (74hct) 4007 (4000)	<u> </u>	d	<u>A</u> dd Cancel
			Filter		
			Name: Pins:		Apply Clear
			PCB Sym	bol:	
			<u>P</u> ackage:	DIL	~
/			Ref Name:		
/	Desc:	2 x Comp.Pair + Inverter		Component <u>B</u> in	1
V					

Tented Vias

This is a simple method of specifying whether or not vias are to be 'tented'. A tented via is one that is covered with solder resist during the manufacturing stage. In order for this to happen, the via that is to be tented must be identified in the design and a specific output generated.

The **'tented'** property is defined in the **Net Class**. When vias in the design use this Net Class, the output file generated in the **Plotting and Printing** dialog can use this flag as a selection option.

let Class			×	
Name: Type: <u>0</u> wn C	DQS Signal V			
Minimum Ti	rack Style	Via Style		
Name:	Track 10 🗸 🗸	Name:	Via 40 🗸 🗸 🗸	
Width:	0.2540	Size:	1.0160	
Nominal Tr	nok Stulo	Shape:	Round ~	
Name:	Track 12	Length:	0.0000	
Width:	0.3048	Hole Size:	0.8128	
⊿ Maximum	Track Length Difference	Min and Ma	ax Track Lengths	
Length:	0.3000	Min: 0.00	000 Max: 0.0000	
🗹 Differentia	al Pairs	F	Tented	1
Gap: 0.2	2000 🗹 Skew Length: 1.50	000	None	
	0/		All Individual	
	ОК	Cancel	None	

Each Net Class has a new property of **Tented** which can be set to one of three values:

None: vias on this Net Class are automatically not tented so they will appear on plots as normal.

All: all vias on this Net Class are automatically classified as tented.

Individual: the Tented flag is set by you as required. This is set on Via Properties for each via

Via Properties

When **Tented** is set to **None** or **All** on the Net Class, the tented state of a via is displayed on the **Via Properties** dialog but the check box is greyed out because it is inheriting its setting from the Net Class.

Properties - Via	×
Via Net	
Position: 49.5750 67.8000 ■ Rel Angle: 0.00 □ Protected □ Fixed □ Testland ☑ Tented	
Plane Connection: Default Connection ~	
Span: [Through Hole]	~

When the **Tented** property is set to **Individual**, this check box then becomes available for setting.

Tented Via Colours

On the **Display** (Colours) dialog there is a new check box and colour setting for **Tented Vias**:

Layers and Layer Spans	Settings and Highligh	ts Nets Net Classes Co	mp Colours		
Board:	~	Selection:	— ~	BackGround:	<u> </u>
Fill On Specia	al Effect Layer	Highlight:		Grids	
		Net Highlight:	— ~		
Connections:	~	Highlight Track	s with Stripe	Ruler Stops:	~
Pin Names:	— ~	Diff Pairs:		Overlay:	
Pin Numbers:	— ~	Dangling Tracks:		Symbol Origins:	— ~
Top Wire Link:	— ~	Angled Tracks:		Placement Origins:	— ~
Bottom Wire Link:	— ~	Tracks fixed for Router:		✓ Draw Drill Holes	
Top Flying Wire:	· · ·	Lowlight Fixed Items		Unconnected Pins:	~
Bottom Flying Wire	: 🗾 🗸	Testlands:		Unplated Holes:	
Bitmaps:		Protected Vias:		No Connect Pins:	— ~
		Tented Vias:			
✓ Notes		Unfitted Components:		J	
Dimensions:	— ~				
Text Callouts:	— ~		Merge Colours	Show Clearances:	Finish Mark
Inserted Tables:		Not Visible	Shapes	Error:	Direct Hit:

Tented Vias in the Design

If this highlight is enabled (checked) in Display, any via that is tented (either individually on **Properties** or from its **Net Class**) will be marked with an X (cross) in the same way as we do to highlight unconnected pads:



Note, this is the only visual indication of the 'presence' of the via shape on a resist layer, the rest of the processing is done at the plotting stage. In other words, if you display only your top resist layer, vias that are marked as tented will still be drawn.

Plotting Tented Vias

In **Plotting and Printing**, there is a new check box on the **Settings** tab for each plot that allows you to decide whether or not to exclude tented vias from that plot.

Top Electrical Top Electrical (Resist) Top Electrical (Paste) Top Electrical (Paste) Top Electrical (Paste)	Output Layers Settings Position Settings for plot: Top Electrical (Resist)
Top Silk Screen Bottom Electrical Bottom Electrical (Resist) Gerber Drill Data - [Through Hole] OK Drill Data - [Through Hole] Drill Ident Drawing - [Through Hole]	✓ Eill Plated Dnil Holes ✓ Pads-Only (Re ✓ Eill Unplated Dnil Holes Make Pads/Vi ✓ Eill Unplated Dnil Holes Make Pads/Vi ● Plated Board Outlines Ploted Board Outlines □ Unplated Dnil Holes Percentage □ Include Dniled Out Normal Via: □ Plot Pin Names/Numbers ✓ Testland Via ✓ All Colours Black ✓ Exclude Tented Vias

The default setting for this is unchecked (plots include tented vias) but when auto-generating plots it will try to determine which plots are Resist and will thus tick this box for you. This setting is also saved in **Plot Jobs** so it is easy to prepare a preferred set of plots and settings and save it for future use.

Export Pin Information from Component Editor dialog

In the **Component Editor**, it is already possible to import a CSV file of pin information to help assign names and numbers to pins in the component. Easy-PC V25 now allows you to **Export Pin** information in a CSV.

The new **Export Pin Information** command is available in the **Component Editor** on the **Edit** menu.

	Easy-P	asy-PC by Number One Systems - [C:\Users\Documents\Easy-PC25\Library\Transistor.cml - 2N3053 - Untitled (Component)]								
: 😰	File	Edit	View Setti	ngs Window	Help					
÷ 🗅	🖻 [ю	Undo	Alt+Backspace	□+ ⊕+ 0+ 0+	*미 한 한 한	💠 🚽 🔆 🔆	२ 🔍 🕋 📖	🖺 🄌 🔝	
 1	Gate		Redo	Ctrl+Y	ol	Sch Terminal	Pcb Symbol	Component Pin	Net (Class)	No Connect
:= **** * •	Nam	\times	Delete	Delete	Jame	Number		Name/Number		
****	а	**** ****	Assign Pins 1-1			1	2	2		
J ^O		A1 B1 A2	Name Pins By R	low/Col		2	1	1		
₽			Export Pin Info	rmation		3	3	3		
A1 B1 A2		1,81 2,82	Import Pin Info	rmation						
1.81 2,82		\mathbf{L}	Select							
•		***	Assign Pins							

This helps you prepare this data by outputting a CSV file containing the existing pin details from the component, which you can then edit in a program like Excel, and read back into the component using the existing **Import Pin Information** command.

	5 ° ?	× abc ∓					
F	File Home	Insert	Page Layout	Formulas	Data Re	view View He	elp 🛛 Tell
	Cut	• I	Calibri			· · · · · · · ·	
	🗸 💉 Format	t Painter	B 1 Ū ~	• • <mark>•</mark> •	<u>A</u> ~ ≡	= = € €	🚍 Merge & Ci
	Clipboard	L2	For	nt		Alignm	ent
E1	1 *	\pm \times	$\sqrt{f_x}$				
				2	5		
	A	В	c	D	E	F	G
1	Pad Number	Pin Name	Terminal Name		Gate Name	Terminal Number	_
1 2	Pad Number 2		_		-	Terminal Number	
1 2 3	Pad Number	Pin Name	Terminal Name		Gate Name	Terminal Number	
	Pad Number 2	Pin Name 2 1	Terminal Name B	Net Name	Gate Name	Terminal Number	L
3	Pad Number 2 1	Pin Name 2 1	Terminal Name B C	Net Name	Gate Name a	Terminal Number	L
3 4	Pad Number 2 1	Pin Name 2 1	Terminal Name B C	Net Name	Gate Name a	Terminal Number	L